
 

West Devon Development 

Management and Licensing 

Committee 
 

Title: Agenda 

Date: Tuesday, 12th December, 2023 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Chamber - Kilworthy Park 

Full Members: Chairman Cllr Cheadle 

 Vice Chairman Cllr Southcott 

 Members: Cllr Cunningham 
Cllr Guthrie 
Cllr Jory 
Cllr Leech 
 

Cllr Mann 
Cllr Moody 
Cllr Mott 
Cllr Wakeham 
 

Interests – 
Declaration and 
Restriction on 
Participation: 

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's 
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any 
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for 
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Committee 
administrator: 

Kathy Hoare - Democratic Services Specialist 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

  Page No 

 

1.   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest  

 In accordance with the Code of Conduct, Members are invited to 
declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, Other Registerable 
Interests and Non-Registerable Interests including the nature and 
extent of such interests they may have in any items to be 
considered at this meeting; 
 

 

3.   Items Requiring Urgent Attention  

 To consider those items which, in the opinion of the Chairman, 
should be considered by the Meeting as matters of urgency (if 
any).   
 

 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 12 

 For Meetings held on 31 October 2023 and 21 November 2023, 
and the Licensing Sub Committee Meeting 24 October 2023 
 

 

5.   Planning Applications  

 To see Letters of Representation and further supplementary 
information relating to any of the planning applications on the 
agenda, please select the following link and enter the relevant 
Reference number: 
https://apps.westdevon.gov.uk//PlanningSearchMVC/  
 
 

 

(a)   1769/23/FUL 
 

13 - 32 

 Uphill, Yelverton Ward: Buckland Monachorum 
 
Use of walled garden for weddings, workshops & food events, 
construction of four ancillary buildings within the walled garden, 
use  of part of adjacent barn for wedding ceremonies & 
construction of external staircase to barn (part retrospective) 
(resubmission of 2992/22/FUL) 
 

 

6.   Planning Appeals Update  
 

33 - 34 

7.   Update on Undetermined Major Applications  
 

35 - 36 

https://apps.westdevon.gov.uk/PlanningSearchMVC/


Minutes of a meeting of the WEST DEVON DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT & 
LICENSING COMMITTEE held on TUESDAY the 31st day of October 2023 at 

10.00am in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILWORTHY PARK 
 

 
Present         Cllr R Cheadle – Chairman  

                      Cllr T Southcott – Vice-Chairman  

 
                           

Cllr A Cunningham                Cllr N Jory 
                              Cllr M Ewings                        Cllr U Mann 

Cllr S Guthrie                         Cllr J Moody 

Cllr P Kimber                         Cllr S Wakeham 
                              

                                                                                                                                              
  

Head of Development Management (JH) 

Senior Planning Officer (PW) 
Monitoring Officer and Head of Legal Services (DF) (Via MS Teams) 

Senior Democratic Services Officer (KH)    
 
 
*DM&L.22 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

                      Apologies were received from Cllr C Mott for who Cllr P Kimber 

substituted and Cllr T Leech for who Cllr M Ewings substituted. 
            
 

*DM&L.23 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

                      There were no declarations of interests. 

  
 
*DM&L.24 URGENT BUSINESS 

                      There was no urgent business brought forward to this meeting. 
  

 
*DM&L.25 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

The minutes from the Committee meeting held on 3 October 2023 were 

approved as a true and correct record. 
 

 
*DM&L.26 PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 

AND ENFORCEMENT REPORTS 

                     The Committee proceeded to consider the reports that had been 
prepared by the relevant Planning Officer on the following applications 

and considered also the comments of the Town and Parish Councils 
together with other representations received, which were listed within 
the presented agenda report and summarised below: 

 
                     (a) Application No. 0466/23/FUL           Ward: Exbourne 

 
Site Address: Westacre, Sampford Courtenay EX20 2SE 
 

                           Development: Erection of farm shop with on site parking and  
                           landscaping. 

 
Page 1

Agenda Item 4



                           Recommendation: Refusal 

                           
 

                           Key issues for Committee consideration: 

 Principle of development/sustainability 

 Design/landscape 

 Biodiversity 

 Neighbour amenity 

 Highways/access 

 Drainage 

 Low carbon development 

                     
                         

 
                     The Planning Officer reiterated that it was the suitability of the  

                     location that needed to be addressed first before looking at policy  
                     DEV 15 which addressed supporting business start-up in rural areas.  
                     The Head of Development Management stated that had an  

                     application been presented whereby the building was clustered with the 
                     other farm buildings it may have been more favourable with regard to  

                     any impact on the local environment and landscape. 
 
                     Speakers included the applicant, and two statements from the two 

                     Ward Members, Cllrs Casbolt and Watts. 
 

                      The applicant stated that she and her husband ran a dairy farm and  
                      currently employ several local people within their dairy production  
                      business, which included milk and ice-cream production and delivery. 

                      Currently there was an honesty box shed on their driveway at Westacre  
                      Where the Applicant sold their milk in reusable glass bottles. They also  

                      sold  grass fed beef and pork along with logs and kindling wood which  
                      are all produced on their farm. 
                      In pre-application talks the Applicant said that they were advised to  

                      move the proposed shop away from the junction where the current  
                      farm shed was. The access point was on a bus route and popular  
                      cycle route. Solar panels would be used for energy and the building 

                      clad with wood from their farm. She stated there would be tables for 
                      use by those using the shop, but food was not being served and  

                      therefore no toilet facilities would be provided. The Applicant explained  
                      that they have around 65 stockists for their products in the area and  
                      they deliver to them. 

                      In the statement from Cllr Casbolt,he stated that he felt the application  
                      would be a great asset for the local economy. He felt it would reduce  

                      carbon emissions for those not travelling to the nearby town of 
                      Okehampton. 
                      In Cllr Watts comments she felt Members should support local  

                      farming communities and supported the comments Cllr Casbolt had  
                      stated.  

 
                      In debate Members wrestled with Policy DEV 15 whereby support is  
                      given to supporting local businesses in rural areas and why the  

                      site was described as isolated in the officer report. One  
                      Member felt DEV15 had several objective requirements but the  

                      overriding caveat seemed to be whether the site was suitable and  
                      sustainable. They made the comment that the Council had  Page 2



                      secured funding from the UK Prosperity Fund to help businesses and 
                      farms to diversify. Government Policy was about stewardship and  

                      diversification of farms. He felt Dev 15 should not stand in the way of  
                      this type of diversification. Another Member said they felt this  

                      application for a farm shop would help to put people back in contact  
                      with their food. 
                      Another Member commented on the positives of a farming family  

                      coming forward in a regenerative way along with showing families 
                      around the farm in an educational way. 

                      Drainage issues were raised and it was suggested that conditions  
                      should be imposed if the recommendation was to grant the application. 
 

                      The Head of Development Management reminded Members that  
                      they needed to consider the development against the planning  

                      polices in the Development Plan. 
                      The application was contrary to those polices and therefore Members  
                      would need to give reasons why they disagreed if they felt they would  

                      support the application. She also reminded Members that the starting  
                      point in the JLP are the SPT polices -when deciding an application. A  

                      Member pointed out that SPT 1 states a sustainable economy where  
                      opportunity for business growth and a low carbon economy is  
                      encouraged and supported. Sustainable societies whereby  

                      communities have a mix of local services to meet the needs of local  
                      people. Another Member commented that the business had an 

                      excellent reputation. They also felt cycling to the shop from Hatherleigh  
                      on the lanes was safe. A Member stated that part of bringing the JLP  
                      together was to help the farming community diversify. He said if they  

                      don’t do that then it sends out mixed messages.  
                      The Head of Legal reminded Members to have a regard to the  

                      planning polices when making a decision and gave advice about how 
                      the Committee should approach the interpretation of the relevant  
                      policies. 

                       
                      One Member felt the applicant had done all they could to comply with 

                      the JLP and quoted from the JLP saying it would help a circular  
                      regenerative economy. Another commented that they would not expect  
                      a sustainable location policy to be linked with a farm shop. Another 

                      said people would have a reason to use their bicycle to do a short  
                      journey to the farm shop from one of the local villages, hence  

                      increasing the sustainability.  
 
                      In summing up, the Committee felt that the application met policies  

                      SPT 1 and Dev 15. 
                        

 
                                     Committee Decision:  Conditional Consent. The Head of  
                                     Development Management be authorised to grant  

                                     approval subject to conditions to be determined in  
                                     consultation with the Chairman and Vice- 

                                     Chairman of the Development Management and  
                                     Licensing Committee, such conditions to include a  
                                     condition on drainage. 

 
                   

                      (b) Application No. 1318/23/FUL         Ward: Tavistock North        
Page 3



    
                            Site Address: The Kiosk, Bus Station, 20 Plymouth Road,  

                            Tavistock PL19 8AY 
 

                            Development: Conversion of existing offices into three flats 
                            with associated courtyard area and soft landscaping to front 
    

                             
                                  Recommendation: Conditional approval subject to  

                            completion of Unilateral Undertaking to secure Tamar EMS  
                            mitigation 
 

                     The Head of Development explained that the application had come  
                     back to Committee for Members to reconfirm their decision made at its  

                     last meeting (Min DM&L19 refer). After  
                     the last Committee meeting it was noticed that the address of the  
                     proposed development was incorrect. It referred to both The kiosk,  

                     Bus Station and 20 Plymouth Road. It has now been corrected to 20  
                     Plymouth Road by the applicant. The application had then been 

                     re-advertised in the local  press.  
                     It has then been also noticed that the proposed Flat 2 was not fully  
                     included within the red line on the plans. This was corrected and was  

                     Re-advertised in the local press. Also, following an error in the  
                     description of the Applicant on the application form, the Applicant had  

                     written formally to correct it. 
 
                     The Head of Development Management confirmed that nothing had  

                     changed in items of the material considerations of the application. 
 

                             
 
                            Committee decision: The Committee confirmed its decision  

                            to grant conditional approval as set out at Min DM&L 19 
                             

                          
*DM&L.27     PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE 

                      The Head of Development Management took Members through two  

                      Appeal decisions. 1047/22/FUL, construction of a 3-to-4-bedroom 
house at Station Road, Bere Alston. The application was refused. The  

                      Inspector noted and agreed with the reasons for refusal, however he  
                      did not consider the cottage to be a non-designated heritage asset and 

felt the Council had not given enough information to demonstrate that 

it was. She said she would be looking at whether a list of non-
designated heritage assets should be drawn up moving forward. The 

second appeal was 3072/22/HHO, a householder application for a 
storage enclosure in the back garden. The back garden was located 
over the West Devon World Heritage Site. The application was refused 

for this reason and the Inspector agreed with the decision. 
 
*DM&L.28     UPDATE ON UNDETERMINED MAJOR APPLICATIONS 

 There were no questions on this item. 
 

(The Meeting ended at 11.20am) 
 

______________________ 
Page 4



Chairman 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 Minutes of a meeting of the WEST DEVON DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT & 
LICENSING COMMITTEE held on TUESDAY the 21st day of November 2023 at 

10.00am in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILWORTHY PARK 
 

 
Present         Cllr R Cheadle – Chairman  

                      Cllr T Southcott – Vice-Chairman  

 
                           

Cllr A Cunningham                Cllr N Jory 
                              Cllr M Ewings                        Cllr U Mann 

Cllr S Guthrie                         Cllr J Moody 

Cllr P Kimber                        Cllr S Wakeham 
                              

                                                                                                                                              
  

Head of Development Management (JH) 

Senior Planning Officers (HE and DS) 
Monitoring Officer and Head of Legal Services (DF)  

Senior Democratic Services Officer (KH)    
 
 
*DM&L.29 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

                      Apologies were received from Cllr Leech and Cllr Mott for who Cllr 

Kimber substituted. 
            
 

*DM&L.30 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

                      There were no declarations of interests. 

  
 
*DM&L.31 URGENT BUSINESS 

                      There was no urgent business brought forward to this meeting. 
  

 
*DM&L.32 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

The minutes from the Committee meeting held on 31 October 2023 

were deferred as a Member felt they did not reflect why the Committee 
went against the Officer recommendation on application 0466/23/FUL. 

They will be amended and brought back to the next Committee 
meeting. 

 

 
*DM&L.33 PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 

AND ENFORCEMENT REPORTS 

                     The Committee proceeded to consider the reports and presentations 
that had been prepared by the relevant Planning Officers on the 

following applications and also considered the comments of the Parish 
Councils together with other representations received, which were 

listed within the presented agenda report and summarised below: 
 
                     (a) Application No.   0604/23/FUL         Ward: Bridestowe 

 
Site Address: Land at SX 460 975, Metherell Cross, Patchacott 

 
Page 7



                           Development: Construction of a temporary agricultural  
                           workers supervisory dwelling (resubmission of 2874/22/OPA) 

 
                           Recommendation: Conditional Approval 

 
                          Conditions 

1. Time limit 

2. Accord with plans 
3. Agricultural tie 

4. Temporary 3 year period 
5. PD limitations 
6. No external lighting 

7. Details of elevations 
8. Landscaping Scheme 

                           
 

                           Key issues for Committee consideration: 

 Development in the countryside, landscape impact and 
agricultural need.  

                     
                           The Planning Officer gave a presentation to the Committee  
                           Members.  

                           A Member raised the lack of details in the type of building proposed 
                           in the application. The Planning Officer agreed it was unusual but  

                           to bear in mind from the applicant’s point of view, that they may be  
                           looking to purchase an existing building being used elsewhere.  
                           They could not guarantee purchasing that building until they had  

                           planning permission granted. He added that conditions could be  
                           added should Members grant permission.  

                           Another Member asked about what would happen at the end of the 
                           3 years of a temporary permission. The Planning Officer indicated  
                           that the need for a permanent dwelling would have to be proven or  

                           further years as a temporary dwelling may be considered if sufficient   
                           evidence was not available at the end of 3 years.  

                            
                           It would be necessary to show the business was viable, with full  
                           financial records of the business operation. The Planning Officer 

                           confirmed that the building would be of a modular portacabin  
                           structure. 

                           Members requested an additional condition of drainage.  
                          
                           A Member asked for clarity on policy TTV26 and the agricultural 

                           appraisal related to the need for the dwelling. Queries were raised   
                           about the fact that the Parish Council had raised a point that it was 

                           not a dairy herd and therefore there was not a need for 24 hour  
                           presence on site. It was confirmed that the appraisal covered all  
                           animal husbandry and confirmed there was a need for 24 hour  

                           presence on site. The conclusion was also based on the  
                           construction and occupation of the second agricultural building  

                           recently granted permission (0593/23/FUL). 
 
                           As a registered speaker, Mr Heywood, the agent for the applicant  

                           confirmed it would be a timber clad modular building. He stated  
                           there would be 80 calves in the new calf building at any one time, 

                           with 300 calves going through in a year. He stated that the future  Page 8



                           occupiers of the proposed temporary accommodation would reduce  
                           other elements in their working lives to allow them to push the  

                           business forward, after being challenged that the proposed  
                           occupiers have other full-time jobs. 

 
                           A statement read out on behalf of Beaworthy Parish Council stated 
                           that the future occupants are in full time employment but not in 

                           farming and lived a couple of miles from the site at Patchacott. 
 

                           The Planning Officer commented on the fact that it is for the farming  
                           enterprise to decide who is a suitable person to reside on site in the  
                           property. It could be a stockman brought in for the first three years 

                           as the business is establishing.  
                            

                          In debate a Member felt there was a lot of detail missing within the  
                          application.  They also had concerns on the site levels and drainage.  
                          The proposed accommodation would be downhill from the  

                          agricultural buildings and could have run off from the other buildings 
                          on site.  

 
 
                          Committee Decision: Conditional Approval, subject to the  

                          addition of conditions relating to; 

 Construction and design details 

 Climate change measures 

 Surface and foul drainage details 

 Levels 
 

                          These conditions to be agreed by the Head of Development  

                          Management; the Chair and Vice Chair of the Development  
                          Management and Licensing Committee.   

                          
 
 

                   
                      (b) Application No. 2110/23/FUL       Ward:     Bridestowe 

    
                            Site Address: Wooda Farm, Lewdown EX20 4PL 
 

                            Development: Proposed roof over replacement slurry store 
(resubmission of 1621/23/FUL) 

    
                             
                                  Recommendation: Conditional Approval 

 

                     The Planning Officer explained that this application was brought  

                     to Committee due to it being an application of a West Devon    
                     Councillor. The application was to comply with the Government’s  
                     Clean Air Strategy 2019, which requires all digestive stores in England  

                     to have a cover by 2027. 
 

                           Conditions: 
1. Time 
2. Plans 

3. Planting Page 9



4. Drainage 
 

 
 

                            Key issues for consideration: 

 Principle of development, design/landscape, neighbouring 
amenity, highways, drainage and low carbon development. 
 

                     A Member stated it was a development that met the need in the 

                     countryside.  
                     There was no debate on the application.         
 

                            Committee decision:  Conditional Approval 
                             

                          
*DM&L.34     PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE 

                      The Head of Development Management took Members through an 

appeal that was upheld on a tree application at Castle Road, 
Okehampton. The application to reduce the crown height by 0.5m was 

originally refused, however the appeal was upheld and conditionally 
approved as the Inspector felt it did not impact the character and 
appearance of the area. 

 
 
*DM&L.35     UPDATE ON UNDETERMINED MAJOR APPLICATIONS 

 The Head of Planning made comment on the application at the wool 
grading centre at North Tawton. This application has been ongoing 

since 2019. She explained that the application did not propose any 
affordable housing and there was an outstanding objection from the 

Environment Agency. The LPA would look to discuss withdrawal of the 
application with the applicant. 

 

(The Meeting ended at 11.00am) 
 

______________________ 
Chairman 

Page 10



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  

HELD ON TUESDAY 24 OCTOBER 2023 

  

Present:       Cllr R Cheadle (Sub-Committee Member)   

                      Cllr A Cunningham (Sub-Committee Member)   

                      Cllr N Jory (Sub-Committee Member) 

  Cllr T Leech (Sub-Committee Member) 

                     Cllr T Southcott (Sub-Committee Member) 

 

Alan Parr, Solicitor (via MS Teams) 

 Naomi Stacey, Specialist Licensing 

                        Kathy Hoare, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

                       Harry Lionis, Licensing Officer 

   

Also in attendance:  

  

                     Cllrs Dexter, West, Squire and Viney 

              

  
*LSC 1        APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN  

It was RESOLVED that Cllr Cheadle be appointed Chairman for the 

duration of the Sub-Committee meeting. 

 

 
*LSC 2        DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

On behalf of the Sub-Committee, a personal interest was declared by 

Cllr Cheadle on agenda item 5 (Minute *LSC 4 below refers) by virtue 

of the applicant being a fellow Member of West Devon Borough 

Council.  All Members remained in the meeting during the debate and 

vote thereon. 

 

 
*LSC 3 EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 It was RESOLVED that, in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972, the public and press be excluded from the 

meeting during consideration of the following items of business as the 

likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of 

Schedule 12A to the Act is involved. 

 

 
*LSC 4          TO DETERMINE WHETHER TO GRANT A HACKNEY CARRIAGE  

                      AND PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE 

The Licensing Officer introduced the exempt report and set out the 

reasons for the Sub-Committee being required to determine this 

application. 

 

Page 11



Following a brief discussion, the Committee RESOLVED to grant the 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licence in accordance with 

the published exempt agenda report. 

 

 
*LSC 5          TO DETERMINE WHETHER TO GRANT A HACKNEY CARRIAGE  

                      AND PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE 

The Licensing Officer introduced the exempt report and set out the 

reasons for the Sub-Committee being required to determine this 

application. 

 

Due to some of the paperwork not being completed correctly by the 
applicant, the Committee RESOLVED to defer a decision on this 

application to a future date, to be arranged. 

                      
 

(The meeting closed at 4.30pm) 
_____________  

                 Chairman 

Page 12



PLANNING APPLICATION REPORT  
 
Case Officer:   Belle Richer-Hill                  Parish:  Buckland Monachorum   Ward:  
Buckland Monachorum 
 
Application No:  1769/23/FUL 
 

 

Agent/Applicant: 
Emily Robinson - Atticus Planning 
Limited 
PO Box 247 
Tavistock 
PL19 1FJ 

 

Applicant: 
Uphill Farm Events 
Uphill 
Plymouth 
PL20 6DF 
 

 
Site Address:    Uphill, Yelverton, PL20 6DF 
 

 
 
Development:  Use of walled garden for weddings, workshops & food events, 
construction of four ancillary buildings within the walled garden, use of part of adjacent 
barn for wedding ceremonies & construction of external staircase to barn (part 
retrospective) (resubmission of 2992/22/FUL)  
 

Reason item is being put before Committee  
Head of DM has requested that this application be considered by the Development 
Management and Licensing Committee because it has a number of significant material 
planning considerations. 
 
Recommendation: Conditional Approval 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5a



 
Conditions:  

1. Standard time limit  
2. Accord with plans 
3. Use (weddings, workshops & food events) 
4. Walled garden (catering) 
5. Tied to Listed Building  
6. Number of events  
7. Time of events – to protect the barn owls and amenity of neighbours  
8. Number of guests  
9. Sustainable travel plan  
10. Lighting plan  
11. Noise management plan  
12. Amplified music  
13. Ecological appraisal 
14. Existing nesting site (prior to commencement)   
15. New nesting site (prior to commencement)   
16. Barn owl monitoring  
17. Remove when no longer required 

 
Informatives: 

1. Proactive  
2. Responsibility for compliance  
3. Protected species  

 
Key issues for consideration: 
Location (countryside), Heritage (Listed Building), Landscape, Ecology (barn owl), and 
Amenity (noise and lighting)  
 

 
Site Description: 
The site is a curtilage listed walled garden of approximately 1 acre enclosed by a stone 
boundary wall (approximately 2.5 metres in height) with central double timber entrance gates 
to the east elevation and part of the curtilage listed threshing barn that forms part of the Grade 
II* Listed ‘Uphill’ (list entry number 1105490). 
 
The site is located within the Tamar Valley Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, Devon 
Landscape Character Area 2D Moorland edge slopes, and Plymouth Sound and Estuaries 
Special Area of Conservation 12.3km buffer. The site is also in proximity of the Dartmoor 
National Park boundary, multiple Tree Preservation Orders including Reference S73, and 
Grade II Listed Building ‘Sowton Farmhouse’ (List Entry Number: 1105489) and Grade II Listed 
Building ‘Outbuilding Approximately 10 Metres To South-West Of Sowton’ (List Entry Number: 
1163329).  
 
The Proposal: 
The applicant seeks permission for the use of the barn and the walled garden for up to 55 
commercial events per year (weddings, workshops & food events) for up to 120 guests. The 
applicant seeks permission to retain 3x unauthorised timber structures (prep kitchen, kitchen, 
and toilet). The applicant seeks permission for the erection of 1x glass house. The applicant 
seeks retrospective permission for alterations to the barn’s flooring, steps, and glazed 
balustrade. The applicant also seeks the use of the adjacent field for parking.  
 

Page 14



Associated application 1770/23/LBC (for matters relating to the barn) 
 
Consultations: 
 

 Buckland Monachorum Parish Council  Object 
 

‘Following a Buckland Monachorum Parish Council planning meeting on the 27th June 2023 the 
committee wish to object to the proposal.  
Concerns were raised with regard to the general level of disturbance to local residents from noise, 
light and car movements.  
The parish council would like to request a site visit for the applicant to demonstrate the noise 
restrictions and for the noise levels to be assessed at relevant neighbouring properties. To allow 
members to better understand the noise levels and how intrusive events would be.  
We would welcome the attendance of the EHO, Janet Wallace for WDBC to attend to give 

direction and clarification on this matter’ 
   
 Devon and Cornwall Police    Advice offered  

Designing Out Crime Officer  
 
‘The external doors to the kitchen prep building must be lockable to prevent unauthorised access 
into these areas when not occupied. 
 
Should planning permission be granted any issue regarding licensing related issues will be dealt 
with as a separate matter by licensing.’  

 

 Historic England      No objection to the principle  
27.09.2023  
 
‘part of the significance of Uphill is its traditional appearance, undeveloped setting and tranquil 
rural location. The experience of a heritage asset within its setting is a part of its significance. As 
we have identified in previous letters, there is a risk that expansion of activities could cause harm 
to this character. 
 
It is for your authority to consider what number of events is a correct balance between reasonable 
new use and harmful intensification of traffic movements, noise and activity. We would certainly 
be concerned if further changes were proposed to the barn, the business was separated from the 
house, a greater number (or size) of ancillary structures were located within the walled garden, 
there was increased or formalised parking or structures within the southern field , or there were 
proposals for permanent larger structures to host weddings and events in.’ 
 
‘We continue to strongly recommend that, should your authority grant permission for this proposal, 
carefully worded conditions controlling the scale of the enterprise are imposed and that the use of 
the walled garden as a business is tied to the listed building(s) on the site.’ 
 
‘We continue to strongly recommend that your authority considers legally tying the use of the site 
to Uphill and its associated barns (owned by the applicant), and ensures that the enterprise 
(facilities, locations, scale) does not create harm through excessive numbers of events, 
detrimentally impacting on tranquillity and character.’ 

 
 Tamar Valley AONB      No objection  

 
‘We are pleased to see that the applicant has submitted a sensitive lighting strategy and an event 
noise management plan. With regard to the latter, we note that document states that specific 
noise level from music at any event shall not exceed 5dBa above the prevailing background noise 
level at the facade of any residential property.  

Page 15



 
We seek your assurance that these matters will be carefully considered and appropriately controlled 
by planning condition to ensure no detriment to the relative tranquillity of this part of the designated 
landscape, paying attention to the frequency and duration of events.’  
 

 Dartmoor National Park    No response received  
 

 DCC Ecology      Ok subject to conditions  
8.11.2023     
 
‘Please condition the sound proofing, new barn box and monitoring as detailed in the ecology 
report’  

 
 Barn Owl Trust     No objections subject to conditions 

08.11.2023 
 
‘It is good to see the report specifically mentioning the time of ceremonies and great to see the 
addition of sound-proofing into the mitigation measures.  
 
I think it is important that the following conditions are also clearly stipulated within the mitigation 
measures section which will help ensure the owls aren’t disturbed while nesting: 

- Ceremonies should continue to only be conducted in daylight hours 
- A guest exclusion zone is created north of the walled garden following the daytime 

ceremony. This then means that the owls flight paths shouldn’t be disturbed in the evening 
by guests using this area – crucial when they are feeding young and repeatedly flying back 
and forth from the barn.’  
 

 DCC County Highways Authority  No highways implications 
 

 Environmental Health Team    No objections subject to conditions  
30.10.2023 
‘The comments I made on 17th October clearly set out the position with regards what noise and 
music could be heard at a residence which was around 500m away.  The video sent was taken in 
the porch of the resident's home as is stated on it.  This was not just distant music being heard, it 
was so loud that the track could be identified and words were clear.   

  
Yes we agree that the background noise would vary, in fact in this very rural area it is likely to 
drop as low as 18-20dB at times.  This is why I have stated a typical rural background level to 
work to.  The boundary of a residence is the garden boundary, not a land ownership boundary. 

  
The control set out by the applicant in the original noise management plan was : "The specific 
noise level from music at any event shall not exceed 5dBa above the prevailing background noise 
level at the facade of any residential property. The noise level shall be measured as a 15 min 
Laeq." 

  
The noise reported over the summer suggests that this was exceeded and it would therefore be 
insufficient. Furthermore it would be better for the applicant to demonstrate compliance at a 
location he has access to, if he either receives a complaint or can hear the music himself whilst 
monitoring.  The additional condition that I have suggested therefore does that.  I have however 
amended the reference to background noise levels, and defined "audibility" instead of 
"inaudibility".  In terms of noise management at source this won't make much difference - the 
applicant cannot turn the music volume up on nights when the background levels are higher so he 
needs to design the system and controls so that the music noise level never exceeds the lowest 
background levels.  This condition fulfills the tests as it is necessary, relevant, precise, 
enforceable and reasonable. 

Page 16



 
“No amplified music shall be played on the premises in such a way that it is audible at the 
boundary of any nearby residence.  Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents from music 
noise. (Note: In this case “audibility” is defined as the specific music noise level (measured as 
Laeq, 15 min) which exceeds the background noise level (measured as La90,15 min) prevailing at 
the time.)" 

 

Representations: 
32 representations have been received (16 in support and 16 objecting) and cover the following 
points: 
 
SUPPORT  

- Share traditional skills and knowledge, sustainable way of life  
- Locally sourced materials, simple vernacular structures 
- Benefit local economy, increase footfall  
- Much needed employment however seasonal  
- Hardworking young family 
- Investing in decripid listed building, high economic burden and responsibility  
- Diligent with volume at wedding, encouraged guests leaving to respect local residents, 

making best use of advanced audio-limiting equipment and hired designated sound 
technician  

- Noise always issue in any rural setting, recent tree felling  
- Request independent Noise impact assessment  
- Improving their car park facilities  
- Near the A386 
- Not noticed significant increase in traffic 
- Delivery vehicles no more noise or disruption than others 
- Dartmoor wildlife get killed by inconsiderate drivers from anywhere, cattle grids both 

ends of the lane 
- Encouraging group travel  
- Low level lighting, minimal and contained  
- Rubbish is cleared 

 
OBJECTION  

- Misused Temporary Event Notice, neighbours were not able to voice views/concerns 
- Applicants previously informed they could not use 28 day Permitted Development Rule 

(PD), disregard to local planning rules and regulations, feel this was not oversight, 
intended to build this business into a permanent wedding venue  

- Leave residents with no peaceful weekends all summer to enjoy rural tranquillity 
- Caused major disturbance and nuisance on several occasions, disturbs neighbouring 

houses, wrong location for night club, unwelcome and overpowering, cause anxiety, 
stress and sleep loss, disturbance will ‘occur regularly and continue for a period of time’ 
contrary to DEFRA Statutory Nuisance, force us to close windows to block the level of 
noise, midnight is too late, 10 pm would be less intrusive 

- Marquee no noise insulation, prefer sound proof purpose built building  
- Previously talked about technologies to mitigate sound nuisance but nothing has 

materialised  
- Request information how council/enforcement will monitor/assess venue to ensure 

regulations/conditions met/adhered 
- Not appropriate to Grade II Listed historic agricultural farm building, not common for 

buildings used for facilities for 120 plus guests in a business sense, applicant purchased 
being fully aware of listed status and the resultant limitations 

Page 17



- Not make positive contribution to TVAONB, decreases level of tranquillity  
- Marquee visible from neighbouring gardens and driving around locally, not reasonable 

within AONB, detract from the beautiful landscape  
- Very stringent planning and development rules within the AONB, planning rules and 

regulations are there for a purpose and they must be applied fairly to all 
- Light pollution, use of full headlight beams  
- Impact on enjoyment to watch/listen to bats, deer, brown owls, barn owls  
- Impact on Mare and Foal Sanctuary brought to area for tranquillity to aid rehabilitation  
- Flora and fauna is already diminished, further activity would cause further harm  
- Single-track narrow country lanes restricted by cattle grids/no street lighting and few 

passing places, used regularly by farm vehicles, larger sized vehicles cause significant 
disturbance, already dangerous with frequent accidents occurring, concern if 
emergency vehicle needed access, Dartmoor livestock on roads prone to be hit by 
drivers at night 

- More parking than 30 spaces   
- Short term financial gain for owners, all home owners need to fund maintenance/repair 

of their properties, financial justification at detriment cost of quality of life and TVAONB  
- Concern regarding future development of business premises  

 
All representations are available via the council’s website.   
 
Relevant Planning History 

Decision 

date 

Planning 

application 

reference 

Proposal Decision 

21/03/2019 4126/18/LBC        Listed building consent for structural repairs and 
floor renovation to threshing barn at Uphill 

Withdrawn                                                              

12/01/2023  2992/22/FUL        Retention of the use of the walled garden as a 
wedding venue & training hub (Class E) together 
with two ancillary buildings & car parking 
(Retrospective) 

Withdrawn                                                              

 
ANALYSIS 
 
Principle of Development: 
Policy SPT1 of The Plymouth and South Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034 (JLP) sets out a 
framework for growth and change underpinned by sustainability whereby development 
proposals delivered across the plan area should promote a sustainable economy, sustainable 
society, and sustainable environment. JLP Policy SPT2 requires the application of principles 
of sustainable linked neighbourhoods and sustainable rural communities to guide how growth 
and development should be delivered across the plan area. Development can support the 
overall spatial strategy by creating neighbourhoods and communities which, amongst other 
criteria, are well served by public transport, walking and cycling opportunities, and should 
have an appropriate level of services to meet local needs.  
 
JLP Policy TTV1 ‘Prioritising growth through a hierarchy of sustainable settlements’ sets out 
the Council’s development strategy across the Thriving Towns and Villages Policy Area. The 
policy describes how the settlement hierarchy of (1) Main Towns, (2) Smaller Towns and Key 
Villages, (3) Sustainable Villages and (4) Smaller Villages, Hamlets and the Countryside will 
be used to inform whether a development proposal can be considered sustainable. Growth is 
directed to the main towns in the first instance, to promote self-containment in order to 
support new growth and to support existing services. Paragraph 5.5 of the supporting text 

Page 18



explains that development ‘outside built up areas’ will be considered in relation to JLP Policy 
TTV26 ‘Development in the countryside’.  
 
JLP Policy TTV26 ‘Development in the Countryside’ seeks to protect the role and character 
of the countryside. Paragraph 5.169 of the supporting text provides reasoned justification for 
TTV26 in general and explains how the policy works in conjunction with TTV1 and the 
settlement hierarchy. This accords with the wider spatial strategy for meeting housing and 
employment needs in the policy area and seeks to direct the vast majority of development 
towards the named sustainable settlements identified in Paragraphs 5.8-5.10. 
 
The policy is divided into two different sets of policy requirements: part one (TTV26(1)) that 
applies to development proposals considered to be in isolated locations; and part two 
(TTV26(2)) that applies to all development proposals that are considered to be in countryside 
location. 
 
In this regard, the LPA is applying the Bramshill Ruling in considering whether or not the site 
should be judged to be isolated (City & Country Bramshill Limited v SoSHCLG, Hart District 
Council, Historic England, & The National Trust for Places of Historic Interest or Natural 
Beauty, 2020). This judgement superseded the Braintree Ruling, which had previously 
applied a more literal understanding of the term ‘isolated’, stating that a proposal site would 
need to be ‘far away from people, places or thing’ to be considered isolated. Whether a 
proposed site is or is not "isolated" in this sense is a matter of fact and planning judgment for 
the decision-maker in the particular circumstances of the case in hand” (paragraph 10 of the 
ruling). 
 
In this case, the site in question is in the vicinity of other dwellings, however, these are not 
considered to reasonably constitute a ‘settlement’ for the purposes of applying the Bramshill 
ruling, and the nearest obvious settlement, Yelverton, lies approximately 2.5 miles from the 
site. On this basis, the site is physically separate or remote from a settlement and it is only 
reasonable to conclude that the site should be considered ‘isolated’ and the proposal to 
constitute ‘isolated development in the countryside.’ 
 
JLP Policy TTV26 ‘Development in the countryside’ states 

‘The LPAs will protect the special characteristics and role of the countryside. The 
following provisions will apply to the consideration of development proposals:  
1. Isolated development in the countryside will be avoided and only permitted in 
exceptional circumstances, such as where it would:  

i. Meet an essential need for a rural worker to live permanently at or near their 
place of work in the countryside and maintain that role for the development in 
perpetuity; or  
ii. Secure the long term future and viable use of a significant heritage asset; or  
iii. Secure the re-use of redundant or disused buildings and brownfield sites for 
an appropriate use; or  
iv. Secure a development of truly outstanding or innovative sustainability and 
design, which helps to raise standards of design more generally in the rural 
area, significantly enhances its immediate setting, and is sensitive to the 
defining characteristics of the local area; or  
v. Protect or enhance the character of historic assets and their settings. 

2. Development proposals should, where appropriate:  
i. Protect and improve public rights of way and bridleways.  
ii. Re-use traditional buildings that are structurally sound enough for renovation 
without significant enhancement or alteration.  

Page 19



iii. Be complementary to and not prejudice any viable agricultural operations on 
a farm and other existing viable uses.  
iv. Respond to a proven agricultural, forestry and other occupational need that 
requires a countryside location.  
v. Avoid the use of Best and Most Versatile Agricultural Land.  
vi. Help enhance the immediate setting of the site and include a management 
plan and exit strategy that demonstrates how long term degradation of the 
landscape and natural environment will be avoided.’  

 
Not every criterion within this policy would be engaged or relevant to every proposal.  
 
The proposal does not relate to an essential need for a rural worker or a proven agricultural, 
forestry, or other occupational need that requires a countryside location and does not 
necessarily require this location. Officers acknowledge that the proposal would not prejudice 
viable agricultural operations or use Best and Most Versatile Agricultural Land.  
 
The applicants seek to utilise an existing curtilage listed barn and walled garden. The 
applicants have indicated that the proposal would secure the long term future of the heritage 
assets and have offered a phased schedule of repairs for the farm store (curtilage listed 
building immediately outside the NW corner of the walled garden) and walled garden to 
secure their built fabric and this provides some support to the proposal. The applicants have 
stated that the farm store cannot also be reused as it has an existing function for storage. 
The proposals would not require significant enhancement or alteration to the curtilage listed 
structures. Officers acknowledge that this would provide a viable use for the heritage assets, 
however, this would not necessarily protect or enhance the character of the historic assets 
and their settings. The site is a historic farmstead complex and an events venue with 
commercial structures is not naturally compatible with the way that the site is experienced 
and understand.  
 
JLP Policy DEV15 ‘Supporting the rural economy’ sets out the circumstances in which the 
Council would support appropriately located proposals in rural areas which seek to diversity 
the rural economy, provided that a number of criteria are met.  
 
JLP Policy DEV15 ‘Supporting the rural economy’ states: 
‘Support will be given to proposals in suitable locations which seek to improve the balance of 
jobs within the rural areas and diversify the rural economy. The following provisions apply: 

1. Appropriate and proportionate expansion of existing employment sites in order to 
enable retention and growth of local employers will be supported, subject to an 
assessment that demonstrates no adverse residual impacts on neighbouring uses and 
the environment. 
2. Business start-ups, home working, small scale employment and the development 
and expansion of small business in residential and rural areas will generally be 
supported, subject to an assessment that demonstrates no residual adverse impacts 
on neighbouring uses and the environment. 
3. Proposals should explore opportunities to improve internet connectivity for rural 
communities where appropriate. 
4. Support will be given to the reuse of suitable buildings for employment uses. 
5. The creation of new, or extensions to existing, garden centres or farm shops in the 
open countryside and unrelated to a settlement will only be permitted if the proposed 
development is ancillary to, and on the site of, an existing horticultural business or 
existing farming operation, and provided that 75 per cent of the goods sold will be 
produced within the immediate and adjoining parishes. 

Page 20



6. Development will be supported which meets the essential needs of agriculture or 
forestry interests. 
7. The loss of tourist or leisure development will only be permitted where there is no 
proven demand for the facility. Camping, caravan, chalet or similar facilities that 
respond to an identified local need will be supported, provided the proposal is 
compatible with the rural road network, has no adverse environmental impact and is 
not located within the Undeveloped Coast policy area. 
8. Development proposals should: 

i. Demonstrate safe access to the existing highway network. 
ii. Avoid a significant increase in the number of trips requiring the private car 
and facilitate the use of sustainable transport, including walking and cycling, 
where appropriate. Sustainable Travel Plans will be required to demonstrate 
how the traffic impacts of the development have been considered and 
mitigated. 
iii. Demonstrate how a positive relationship with existing buildings has been 
achieved, including scale, design, massing and orientation. 
iv. Avoid incongruous or isolated new buildings. If there are unused existing 
buildings within the site, applicants are required to demonstrate why these 
cannot be used for the uses proposed before new buildings will be considered.’ 

 
As previously noted, the site is not in a location where development is typically directed. 
Guests are unlikely to live locally, resulting in an increase in private motor vehicles of those 
attending events at the site, contrary to the aims of the JLP and policy DEV15. The applicant 
has submitted a Sustainable Travel Plan to demonstrate how this has been considered and 
mitigated. It claims through 2022 they recorded an average of 31 cars per event (max 35) 
and that due to the desire to consume alcohol, and that guests are largely friends and family, 
guests often travel as a group and this is often pre-organised. It also details the public 
transport links and claims this is advertised in invitations to guests. The applicants have 
developed a Travel Plan with targets for 2024 and 2025 and seek for 50% of visitors to travel 
by sustainable methods. They have appointed a Travel Plan Coordinator to collect data to 
ensure these targets are met. The Sustainable Travel Plan also explains that catering, bar, 
furniture, décor, and floristry is typically provided by the applicants. For brevity, the external 
vehicular movements is calculated at 25 cars/transits/lorries (ranging from staff, deliveries, 
and waste) over the 3 days (before, the day and after). Officers acknowledge that it is difficult 
to enforce that visitors share transport. Given the distance (approximately 1km) from the 
A386 which connects Yelverton and Plymouth, and that Plymouth is a key train station 
(approximately 14.4km away) connecting to rail routes across the country, Officers consider 
that these aims are reasonable. DCC County Highways Authority have not raised concerns 
with the access. 
 
The proposal seeks to reuse an existing curtilage listed barn and walled garden. The 
applicants have stated that the farm store (curtilage listed building immediately outside the 
NW corner of the walled garden cannot be reused as it has an existing function for storage. 
New buildings are proposed, including the regularisation of 3x unauthorised timber 
structures. Design and Heritage is critiqued in greater detail in the relevant section of this 
report, for brevity, whilst these are retrospective, they are of wood, locally sourced, and 
constructed on the site. They have a temporary, lightweight, and subservient character, and 
are easily reversible. The applicants also seek the erection of a glass house. Whilst there is 
no evidence for a glass house on this site and this is erroneously sited in the north-west 
corner, rather than orientated to the sun, this is generally consistent with contemporaneous 
working gardens. The proposal is considered to align with the provisions of DEV15, however 
Officers note that this support is generally caveated as requiring an acceptable impact on 

Page 21



neighbouring amenity. Amenity is discussed in the relevant section of this report, for brevity, 
the Environmental Health Team consider this to be controllable to an acceptable level, 
subject to conditions.  
 
The applicant has claimed that the proposal would support the local rural economy through 
various sectors, giving a boost to the surrounding area, including, but not limited to, the 
employment of hospitality staff, entertainment, hair/make-up artists, 
photographer/videographer, and transport. The agent has also provided details of each of the 
suppliers that would benefit and these are largely local businesses. Officers note that the 
Supplementary Planning Document that accompanies the JLP expands on DEV15, 
explaining that such proposals are expected to ‘provide decently paid employment 
opportunities’ noting that ‘many [rural] job opportunities are poorly paid, seasonal and/or 
insecure’. It is considered that the overall economic benefit of the proposal is difficult to 
quantify and subjective, to some extent, however, there would undoubtedly be some benefit 
to the local rural economy from the provision of this facility in this location. 
 
On balance, Officers consider that whilst the proposal does not meet the planning policies 
completely, the proposal is considered to broadly align with JLP Policy DEV15. The proposal 
is for a limited number of events and is sufficiently located to be served by public transport 
with sustainable travel targets secured by condition. The proposal would provide some 
benefit to the local rural economy without undermining agricultural or other rural operations. 
Whilst partially retrospective, the proposed works are considered to be generally appropriate. 
Overall, the proposal is considered to be acceptable in principle, subject to other relevant 
considerations and policies in this sensitive location. Given the proposal is considered and 
deemed to be acceptable against the submitted information, it is considered necessary to 
condition the timber structures to be removed when they are no longer required.  
 
Design and Heritage:  
As the site is within the curtilage and setting of a Grade II* Listed Building and alteration to 
the curtilage listed barn, Officers must be mindful of the duty to pay ‘special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the listed building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses’ set out in Section 66 of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. Section 16 Paragraph 189 of the NPPF 
explains ‘These assets are an irreplaceable resource, and should be conserved in a manner 
appropriate to their significance, so that they can be enjoyed for their contribution to the 
quality of life of existing and future generations’. The Grade II* Listed status means that the 
site is of ‘more than’ special interest and sits within the top 7% of Listed Buildings across 
England. This means that greater weight should be given to its conservation to reflect the 
asset’s importance, as set out in Section 16 Paragraph 199 of the NPPF. Any ‘harm to, or 
loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or 
from development within its setting), should require clear and convincing justification. 
Substantial harm to or loss of: (b) assets of the highest significance, notably … grade II* 
listed buildings … , should be wholly exceptional’ as set out in Section 16 Paragraph 200 of 
the NPPF.  
 
Historic England’s consultation response requests that this be applied not only to the current 
proposal but also ‘in considering future planning risk, and mitigating that risk’. In this case, 
the list description notes that ‘Altogether the building has been little altered internally or 
externally since the 18th century’ which has led Historic England to note that as ‘a building 
that has not been detrimentally affected by development or other changes to its immediate 
context, and this in itself contributes to its special interest’. This places greater pressure on 
any proposed development (or works) to respect the sensitivity of the site.  

Page 22



 
JLP Policy DEV20 ‘Place shaping and the built environment’ requires that development 
proposals ‘meet good standards of design, contributing positively to both townscape and 
landscape, and protect and improve the quality of the built environment’. This seeks to 
promote high standards of design and requires proposals to have regard to the range of 
factors which help achieve high quality places, with particular consideration of the local 
context, development pattern, and design elements. 
 
JLP Policy DEV21 ‘Development affecting the historic environment’ requires development 
proposals affecting heritage assets ‘to sustain the local character and distinctiveness of the 
area by conserving and where appropriate enhancing its historic environment, both 
designated and non-designated heritage assets and their settings, according to their national 
and local significance’. 
 
Historic England’s consultation response notes that they have no objection in principle to the 
use of the walled garden for occasional light use with temporary structures for a limited 
number of events and guests.  
 
Officers acknowledge that the timber structures are for commercial use and are retrospective. 
The design of the timber structures are largely utilitarian and sit below the height of the 
surrounding wall. They are constructed of wood that was locally sourced and constructed on 
the site. They have a temporary, lightweight, and subservient character, and are easily 
reversible. Whilst there is no evidence for a glass house on this site, the submitted Heritage 
Statement argues ‘it would be normal for kitchen gardens to have sheds and glasshouses 
and for the character of these buildings to evolve through the working life of the space’. This 
is generally consistent with contemporaneous working gardens although this is erroneously 
sited in the north-west corner, rather than orientated to the sun.  
 
The significance of the walled garden is considered to be the historic fabric of the wall, the 
associated built structures immediately outside the NW corner of the walled garden and the 
enclosed cultivated space. The sheer scale of the walled garden exceeds what would be 
expected for a dwelling the size and status of Uphill. It is suggested that the walled garden 
may have supplied high value produce to markets in Plymouth and provision to the Navy. 
The walled garden is itself a valuable heritage asset but also forms part of a wider complex at 
Uphill. In this context, there is no doubt that this asset has a clear functional link to other 
buildings comprising the Uphill complex and reinforces the status and value of the house and 
barns. This is a working space that would have adapted to changing needs.  
 
The impact on the significance of the walled garden is considered to be limited due to the 
temporary and reversible nature of the timber structures. The glass house is complementary 
to the walled garden, however this is not as easily reversed and is not authentic in its siting or 
design. The proposals do introduce built form into the site that are not authentic in siting and 
design. This would detract from the way the building is experienced and understood. In terms 
paragraphs 199-202 of the NPPF, this is considered to introduce constitute less than 
substantial harm because the special qualities of the asset as a whole would not be vitiated 
(as per caselaw in Bedford). However, less than substantial harm does not equate to less 
than significant planning objection. Any harm to a designated heritage asset should be 
afforded considerable importance and weight (as per caselaw in Barnwell Manor).  
  
Having considered that the proposal is unacceptable, the officer is aware of Section 16 
Paragraph 202 of the NPPF ‘Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial 
harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against 

Page 23



the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable’. 
In this case, the proposal would bring economic benefits to the wider area through 
employment and suppliers and the applicants have offered a phased schedule of repairs for 
the farm store (curtilage listed building immediately outside the NW corner of the walled 
garden) and walled garden to secure their built fabric. Given the temporary and reversible 
nature of much of the proposal, these measures are considered to constitute public benefits 
of sufficient weight to outweigh the harm identified. On balance, the proposal is considered to 
accord with the provisions of DEV20 and DEV21.  
 
Landscape: 
The site is located within a sensitive landscape setting within the Tamar Valley Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) which is afforded the highest statutory landscape 
protection in relation to the conservation and enhancement of landscape and scenic beauty. 
JLP Policy DEV25 ‘Nationally protected landscapes’ requires that proposals ‘conserve and 
enhance the natural beauty of the protected landscape with particular reference to their 
special qualities and distinctive characteristics or valued attributes’. This is further reflected in 
JLP Policy DEV23 ‘Landscape Character’ which sets out that development proposals must 
‘conserve and enhance landscape, townscape and seascape character and scenic and visual 
quality, avoiding significant and adverse landscape or visual impacts’. The site is also in 
proximity of the Dartmoor National Park boundary.  
 
Following the lighting strategy and noise management plan, the Tamar Valley AONB Team 
have not objected provided that these are secured by condition to avoid detriment to the 
relative tranquillity of the designated landscape. No response has been received from  
Dartmoor National Park. Amenity is discussed in the relevant section of this report, for 
brevity, the Environmental Health Team consider this to be controllable to an acceptable 
level, subject to conditions. It is therefore considered that the impact on the levels of 
tranquillity could be managed.  
 
The proposed structures are considered to be generally consistent with the current condition 
of the site and largely sit below the height of the wall. The proposed parking area in the 
adjoining field is to be an informal arrangement without demarcation of the field or permanent 
interventions. A planting scheme has also been submitted offering enhancement to the 
natural landscape through reinforcement of the existing hedges along the southern boundary 
with native species. Although there would be introduction of man-made structures and 
associated activity, given the current condition of the site, the limited physical impact, and the 
enhancements proposed, the proposal is considered to maintain and conserve the 
landscape, subject to conditions. The proposal is considered to accord with the provisions of 
DEV23 and DEV25.  
 
Ecology:  
JLP Policy DEV26 ‘Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geological conservation’ sets 
provisions to ensure development proposals ‘support the protection, conservation, 
enhancement and restoration of biodiversity and geodiversity across the Plan Area’.  
 
DCC Ecology initially raised concerns about the full ecological impacts of the proposals and 
how wedding ceremonies could occur without avoid impacting the barn owls that occupy the 
barn and are a protected species of bird which are protected from disturbance during the 
nesting season. The applicant claimed this was relative to the existing level of disturbance. It 
was considered necessary to also consult the Barn Owl Trust. Following discussion between 
the ecological consultant, DCC Ecology, and the Barn Owl Trust, a revised ecological 
appraisal was submitted to provide clarity to the questions raised and reviewed. The Barn 

Page 24



Owl Trust felt that provided events were controlled and limited to daylight hours and the barn 
area avoided in the evening with a guest exclusion zone, the existing nesting area was 
sectioned off and sound proofed, music directed away from the barn, and additional 
alternative permanent nesting provision created elsewhere for a minimum of 3 months before 
the access to the exiting nest removed, then the owls should be able to tolerate the level of 
noise and activity experienced as it ‘shouldn’t be too dissimilar from loud agricultural noises 
that commonly occur in close proximity to nest sites’. Whilst the LPA is concerned that the 
guest exclusion zone does not meet the planning tests, DCC Ecology concluded that the 
proposal was acceptable subject to the sound proofing, new barn box and monitoring 
assessment detailed in the ecology report being secured via condition. The agent raised 
concerns about the barn owl being moved, however, the consent would not necessarily 
require the existing nesting site to be cut off and could operate in tandem with the new 
nesting site, giving the barn owl the option of where to nest. The new nest site would have to 
be additional and meet requirements of distance from the existing nesting site and height. It 
is therefore considered necessary to condition these measures and require details of the 
soundproofing and new nesting site to be submitted and approved in writing prior to the 
commencement. Subject to these conditions, the proposal is considered to accord with the 
provisions of DEV26. 
 
Neighbour Amenity: 
JLP Policy DEV1 ‘Protecting health and amenity’ requires proposals to ‘safeguard the health 
and the amenity of local communities’. In relation to neighbouring amenity, DEV1.1 requires 
‘Ensuring  that new development provides for satisfactory daylight, sunlight, outlook, privacy 
and the protection from noise disturbance for both new and existing residents, workers and 
visitors. Unacceptable impacts will be judged against the level of amenity generally in the 
locality’. 
 
Officers acknowledge the extent of responses received from local residents and the concerns 
raised and the comments from the Parish Council.  
 
The Environmental Health Team reviewed the submitted lighting plan and noise management 
plan that explains noise is to be controlled using a digital signal processor, ceased by 23:59 
with live music ceased by 23:00, limited at 5dBa above background noise at façade of any 
residential property and limited at 95Dbs(A) at the source and felt this was acceptable subject 
to being secured via condition.  
 
Following the summer and feedback locally, the Environmental Health Team explained that 
they maintained their position that ‘hearing noise is not a justification for refusing an 
application, as many activities in the countryside and elsewhere cause noise at times’ and 
that ‘restriction on the number of events is an appropriate way to control the general noise 
levels’, however as ‘controls set out in the noise management plan were not implemented’ 
and ‘amplified music has caused a problem’ whereby ‘loud music noise was heard inside and 
outside nearby residences during some events’ with ‘Residents report[ed] being able to hear 
the words of the songs and identify the tracks being played’, the Environmental Health Team 
amended to conditions recommended to: 
 

“No amplified music shall be played on the premises in such a way that it is audible at the 
boundary of any nearby residence.  Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents 
from music noise. (Note: In this case “Inaudibility” is defined as the specific music noise 
level which does not exceed the typical background noise level, in this area taken as 
25dBa, L90, 15min.)” 
 

Page 25



The previously suggested noise condition which refers to the Noise Management Plan 
should remain: 
 
“The applicant shall ensure that the commitments included within the Noise Management 
Plan dated April 2023 (or succeeding revisions of this plan) shall be complied with at all 
times during events at which live or amplified music is played. Reason: to protect the 
amenity of residents in the vicinity from unacceptable noise levels.” 

 
The difference being rather than noise limited at 5dBa above background noise at a façade, 
the noise would be limited to being inaudible at the boundary. The agent argued that this 
condition was not clear as background noise varies through the year, that this would not meet 
the tests for planning conditions, and that it would undermine the business. This was fed 
back to the Environmental Health Team who responded:  
 

‘The comments I made on 17th October clearly set out the position with regards what noise and 
music could be heard at a residence which was around 500m away.  The video sent was taken in 
the porch of the resident's home as is stated on it.  This was not just distant music being heard, it 
was so loud that the track could be identified and words were clear.   

  
Yes we agree that the background noise would vary, in fact in this very rural area it is likely to 
drop as low as 18-20dB at times.  This is why I have stated a typical rural background level to 
work to.  The boundary of a residence is the garden boundary, not a land ownership boundary. 

  
The control set out by the applicant in the original noise management plan was : "The specific 
noise level from music at any event shall not exceed 5dBa above the prevailing background noise 
level at the facade of any residential property. The noise level shall be measured as a 15 min 
Laeq." 

  
The noise reported over the summer suggests that this was exceeded and it would therefore be 
insufficient. Furthermore it would be better for the applicant to demonstrate compliance at a 
location he has access to, if he either receives a complaint or can hear the music himself whilst 
monitoring.  The additional condition that I have suggested therefore does that.  I have however 
amended the reference to background noise levels, and defined "audibility" instead of 
"inaudibility".  In terms of noise management at source this won't make much difference - the 
applicant cannot turn the music volume up on nights when the background levels are higher so he 
needs to design the system and controls so that the music noise level never exceeds the lowest 
background levels.  This condition fulfills the tests as it is necessary, relevant, precise, 
enforceable and reasonable. 

 
“No amplified music shall be played on the premises in such a way that it is audible at the 
boundary of any nearby residence.  Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents from music 
noise. (Note: In this case “audibility” is defined as the specific music noise level (measured as 
Laeq, 15 min) which exceeds the background noise level (measured as La90,15 min) prevailing at 
the time.)" 

 

The agent responded that the applicant would accept the updated noise condition. Ultimately 
the Environmental Health Team consider the disturbance associated with the proposal to be 
controllable to an acceptable level without detrimental impact to neighbour amenity and the 
tranquillity of the area, subject to conditions. The proposal is considered to accord with the 
provisions of DEV1. As Devon and Cornwall Police have noted, licensing related issues will 
be dealt with as a separate matter by licensing. 
 
Highways and Access: 

Page 26



JLP Policy DEV29 ‘Specific provisions relating to transport’ sets out provisions for 
development proposals to ‘contribute positively to the achievement of a high quality, effective 
and safe transport system in the Plan Area’.  
 
Officers acknowledge representations received that raise concerns that the existing highway 
network is limited with a winding, partially single, Class C Country Road with passing spaces 
given the rural context. The proposed arrangements provides off street parking with space to 
manoeuvre within the site and avoid causing detriment to the public highway and no related 
concerns have been received from DCC the County Highways Authority. Given the limited 
number of events and private motor vehicle numbers expected, it is considered that the 
increased volume of traffic attracted to the site would be sufficient to cause significant issues 
related to highway safety at the site access or on roads leading to the site. The proposal is 
considered to accord with the provisions of DEV29. Given the proposal is considered and 
deemed to be acceptable against the submitted information, it is considered necessary to 
condition the number of events and travel details.  
 
Conclusion: 
Overall the proposal is considered to result in generally consistent low level impact that is 
largely temporary and reversible when no longer necessary.  The proposal offers some 
benefit to the local rural economy, with a schedule of repairs and enhancement to the native 
hedging. Disturbance of the barn owl is considered to be manageable through soundproofing 
and the creation of an additional nesting site. Through strict controls of events, travel plan, 
lighting and noise, the impact to the surrounding area and residents is considered to be 
manageable to maintain the tranquillity of the area. On balance, the proposal is considered to 
accord with the local plan policies and considerations, and the proposal is therefore 
recommended for approval, subject to conditions.  
 
This application has been considered in accordance with Section 38 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and with Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
 
Planning Policy 
 
Relevant policy framework 

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of 
the 2004 Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  For the purposes of decision making, as of March 26th 2019, the Plymouth & 
South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014 - 2034 is now part of the development plan for 
Plymouth City Council, South Hams District Council and West Devon Borough Council (other 
than parts of South Hams and West Devon within Dartmoor National Park). 
 
The relevant development plan policies are set out below: 
 
The Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan was adopted by South Hams 
District Council on March 21st 2019 and West Devon Borough Council on March 26th 
2019. 
 
SPT1 Delivering sustainable development 
SPT2 Sustainable linked neighbourhoods and sustainable rural communities 
SPT11 Strategic approach to the Historic environment 

Page 27



SPT12 Strategic approach to the natural environment 
TTV1 Prioritising growth through a hierarchy of sustainable settlements 
TTV2 Delivering sustainable development in the Thriving Towns and Villages Policy Area 
TTV26 Development in the Countryside 
DEV1 Protecting health and amenity 
DEV2 Air, water, soil, noise, land and light 
DEV15 Supporting the rural economy 
DEV20 Place shaping and the quality of the built environment 
DEV21 Development affecting the historic environment 
DEV23 Landscape character 
DEV25 Nationally protected landscapes 
DEV26 Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geological conservation 
DEV28 Trees, woodlands and hedgerows 
DEV29 Specific provisions relating to transport 
DEV31 Waste management 
DEV32 Delivering low carbon development 
DEV35 Managing flood risk and Water Quality Impacts  
DEL1 Approach to development delivery and viability, planning obligations and the 
Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
Other material considerations include the policies of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) and guidance in Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). Additionally, the following 
planning documents are also material considerations in the determination of the application:  
Plymouth and South West Devon Supplementary Development Plan (SPD) (2020) 
Climate Emergency Planning Statement (2022) 
Tamar Valley AONB Management Plan (2019-2024) 

 
Considerations under Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 have been taken into 
account in reaching the recommendation contained in this report. 
  

Page 28



Recommended Conditions  
 

1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the 
expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this permission is granted. 
 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby approved shall in all respects accord strictly with the 
following documents and drawing number(s) received by the Local Planning Authority 
on 08.06.2023: 
- 2207 P.01 P2 (Location/Block Plan) 
- 2207 P.02 P2 (Site Plan Existing and Proposed) 
- 2207 P.04 P2 (Proposed Parking Plan) 
- 2207 P.06 P2 (Existing/Proposed Kitchen Plan and Elevations)  
- 2207 P.05 P2 (Proposed Drainage Plan) 
- 2207 P.08 P2 (Proposed Prep Kitchen Plan and Elevations)  
- 2207 P.07 P2 (Existing/Proposed Toilet Block Plan and Elevations)  
- 2207 P.10 P2 (Proposed Glass House Elevations)  
- 2207 P.11 P2 (Proposed Glass House Elevations)  
- 2207 P.09 P2 (Proposed Glass House Plan)  
- 2207 P.12 P2 (Proposed Glass House Abutment Detail)  
- 2207 P.13 P2 (Barn Plans and Elevations)  
And the following documents and drawing number(s) received by the Local Planning 
Authority on 05.07.2023: 
- 2207 P.12 01 (Proposed Glass House Abutment Detail) 
- 2207 P.03 01 (Proposed Landscape Plan) 
And the following documents and drawing number(s) received by the Local Planning 
Authority on 07.07.2023: 
- 2207 P.12 01 (Barn Plans and Elevations)  
- 1802 P.04 (Existing First Floor Plan)  
And the following documents and drawing number(s) received by the Local Planning 
Authority on 05.10.2023: 
-Schedule of Repairs  
 
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is carried out in accordance with the 
drawings forming part of the application to which this approval relates. 
 

3. The proposed venue shall be used for weddings, workshops & food events and for no 
other purpose in Class E of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use 
Classes) Amendment Order 2005 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting, or further 
amending that Order). 
 
Reason: To ensure that the proposed use complies with the submitted details. 
 

4. All catering on the site shall only take place within the commercial space wedding venue 
(the walled garden), as shown on the approved plan 2207 P.03 01 (Proposed 
Landscape Plan).  
 
Reason: To ensure that the proposed use complies with the submitted details.  

 

Page 29



5. The use of the walled garden for the purposes identified in the description of the 
development shall be carried out in association with the occupation of Uphill and shall 
not be used, let, leased or otherwise disposed of for any other purpose as a separate 
unit or business.  
 
Reason: To avoid the fragmentation of the listed farmstead in accordance with Historic 
England’s consultation response and the provisions of Policy DEV21 of the  Plymouth 
and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 
 

6. No more than 55 events are permitted to take place throughout any calendar year. Up 
to date records of events shall be kept and maintained and made available for 
inspection by the Local Planning Authority.  
Note: In this case each “event” cannot exceed a 24 hour period, a multi-day wedding, 
workshop & food event would be considered as more than one ‘event’. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of nearby residents in accordance with the 
provisions of Policy TTV1, TTV26, DEV15, and DEV1 of the Plymouth and South West 
Devon Joint Local Plan. 
 

7. No event shall take place outside the hours of 11:00 and 22:00 on Sundays, 
Tuesdays, Wednesdays and Thursdays and 9:00 and 23:59 on Fridays and 
Saturdays. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of residents in the vicinity and the tranquillity of the 
rural landscape in accordance with the provisions of Policy TTV26, DEV1, DEV2, 
DEV23 and DEV25 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 
 

8. No more than 120 guests shall be present during any event. Up to date records of the 
covers paid for shall be kept and maintained and made available for inspection by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of residents in the vicinity, the tranquillity of the rural 
landscape, and highway safety in accordance with the provisions of Policy TTV26, 
DEV1, DEV2, DEV23 and DEV25 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local 
Plan. 

 
9. The measures of the Sustainable Travel Plan hereby approved shall be fully 

implemented and adhered to at all times. Annual monitoring of the Sustainable Travel 
Plan against the targets set out shall be undertaken by the Travel Plan Coordinator 
and submitted to the Local Planning Authority.  

 
Reason: To record compliance with the sustainable travel plan in accordance with the 
provisions of Policy DEV15 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 

 
10. The commitments included in the Lighting Plan dated February 2023 (or succeeding 

revisions of this plan) shall be complied with at all times during any event.  
 

Reason: To protect the rural landscape and residents living in the area from temporary 
light pollution in accordance with the provisions of Policy DEV1, DEV23, DEV25, and 
DEV26 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 
 

Page 30



11. The commitments included within the Noise Management Plan dated April 2023 (or 
succeeding revisions of this plan) shall be complied with at all times during events at 
which live or amplified music is played.  
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of residents in the vicinity from unacceptable noise 
levels in accordance with the provisions of Policy DEV1 of the Plymouth and South West 
Devon Joint Local Plan. 
 

12. No amplified music shall be played on the premises in such a way that it is audible at 
the boundary of any nearby residence.   
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents from music noise in accordance with 
the provisions of Policy DEV1 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 
Note: In this case “audible” is defined as the specific music noise level (measured as 
Laeq, 15 min) which exceeds the background noise level (measured as La90,15 min) 
prevailing at the time. 
 

13. Notwithstanding the details set out on the submitted drawings, the recommendations, 
mitigation and enhancement measures of the Ecological Appraisal Rev B, by Rachel 
Hacking Ecology, dated 3 November 2023, shall be fully implemented prior to the 
commencement of the use hereby approved and adhered to at all times. In the event 
that it is not possible to do so all work shall immediately cease and not recommence 
until such time as an alternative strategy has been agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. Within 3 months of the completion of works, written confirmation that 
the enhancement measures have been correctly installed shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved details shall hereafter be retained and maintained in 
perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the welfare of a protected species of wildlife, in the interests of 
the amenity of the area and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, 
the 1981 Wildlife and Country Act (as amended), and in accordance with the provisions 
of Policy DEV26 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 
 

14. Prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted, the details of the sound 
proofing of the existing nesting site, shall be submitted in writing and agreed with the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall hereafter be retained and 
maintained in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the welfare of the barn owls as a protected species of wildlife, in 
the interests of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, the 1981 
Wildlife and Country Act (as amended), in accordance with the provisions of Policy 
DEV26 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 
 

15. Prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted, the details of the new nesting 
site, shall be submitted in writing and agreed with the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved details shall hereafter be implemented, maintained and retained in perpetuity 
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the welfare of the barn owls as a protected species of wildlife, in 
the interests of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, the 1981 

Page 31



Wildlife and Country Act (as amended), in accordance with the provisions of Policy 
DEV26 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 
 

16. Annual monitoring of the Barn Owl nesting area shall be undertaken by a licensed 
ecologist and submitted to the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To safeguard the welfare of the barn owls as a protected species of wildlife, in 
the interests of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, the 1981 
Wildlife and Country Act (as amended), in accordance with the provisions of Policy 
DEV26 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 

 
17. The timber structures hereby approved shall be removed from the site as soon as 

reasonably practicable when they are no longer required, or when they cease to 
function, whichever is soonest. 
 
Reason: To protect the character and setting of the listed complex in accordance with 
the provisions of Policy DEV21 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 

 
Informatives  
 

1. This authority has a pro-active approach to the delivery of development. Early pre-
application engagement is always encouraged. In accordance with Article 35(2) of the 
Town and Country Planning Development Management Procedure (England) Order 
2015 (as amended) in determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has 
endeavoured to work proactively and positively with the applicant, in line with National 
Planning Policy Framework, to ensure that all relevant planning considerations have 
been appropriately addressed. 
 

2. The responsibility for ensuring compliance with the terms of the approval rests with the 
person(s) responsible for carrying out the development. The Local Planning Authority 
uses various means to monitor implementation to ensure that the scheme is built or 
carried out in strict accordance with the terms of the permission. Failure to adhere to the 
approved details can render the development unauthorised and vulnerable to 
enforcement action. 

 
3. You should note that certain wildlife habitats and species are subject to statutory 

protection under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and/or the 
Habitats Regulations 1994. It is a criminal offence to breach the provisions of these legal 
constraints and if your development impacts upon such sites or species you are advised 
to take advice from a competent ecologist who has experience in the habitats/species 
involved and, as necessary, any relevant licenses from Natural England. 

Page 32



 West Devon Borough Council 
 

 PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 12-Dec-23 
 Appeals Update from 31-Oct-23 to 23-Nov-23 
 

 Ward Bridestowe 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 2391/22/HHO APP/Q1153/D/23/3320793 

 APPELLANT NAME: Duncan Creed 

 PROPOSAL: Householder application for rear extension comprising ground floor 
    garage & living accommodation on first floor (retrospective) 
 LOCATION: Southmoor   Thorndon Cross   EX20 4NF  Officer delegated 

 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal decided 

 APPEAL START DATE: 20-July-2023 

 APPEAL DECISION: Upheld 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 09-November-2023 
 
 

 APPLICATION NUMBER: 0100/23/FUL APP/Q1153/W/3326151 

 APPELLANT NAME: Prime Oak 

 PROPOSAL: Erection of oak framed home office, gym & annexe outbuilding 

 LOCATION: Collaven Manor Hotel   Sourton Okehampton  EX20 4HH Officer member delegated 

 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 15-November-2023 

 APPEAL DECISION: 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 
 
 

 Ward Buckland Monachorum 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 0791/23/CLE APP/Q1153/X/23/3327542 

 APPELLANT NAME: Craig Howells 
 PROPOSAL: Certificate of lawfulness for existing material commencement of       building operations  
 pursuant to planning consent 0192/16/FUL within 3 years of being granted and are now  
 therefore extant 
 LOCATION: Crossways  Axtown Lane Yelverton   PL20 6BU Officer delegated 

 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal Withdrawn 

 APPEAL START DATE: 03-October-2023 

 APPEAL DECISION: Withdrawn 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 07-November-2023 
 
 

 Ward Exbourne 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 3844/22/FUL APP/Q1153/W/23/3321991 

 APPELLANT NAME: Fog Developments 
 PROPOSAL: Erection of three dwellings (revised scheme) (resubmission of         0332/22/FUL) 

 LOCATION: Land At SS 599 022   Exbourne    Officer delegated 

 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal decided 

 APPEAL START DATE: 30-August-2023 

 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 31-October-2023 
 
 

 APPLICATION NUMBER: 2613/22/FUL APP/Q1153/W/23/3326764 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr Graham Macklin 
 PROPOSAL: Application for the renewal of previously granted consent for 1no. 

    dwelling (previously 1 of 2) 
 LOCATION: Land Adjacent To Hayes  Holebrook Lane Exbourne Devon   Officer member delegated 

 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 06-November-2023 

 APPEAL DECISION: 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 
 
 

 Ward Hatherleigh 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 4242/21/FUL APP/Q1153/W/23/3321661 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr N Berridge 

 PROPOSAL: READVERTISEMENT (Revised plans and description) Application under 
     paragraph 80(e) of the NPPF for the erection of a five bedroom        dwelling,  a  
 breeding lake and three small zooplankton propagation    ponds, together with associated  
 works 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



 
 LOCATION: Legge Farm   Highampton   EX21 5LF  Officer member delegated 

 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal decided 

 APPEAL START DATE: 30-August-2023 

 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 31-October-2023 
 
 

 Ward Milton Ford 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 4350/22/FUL APP/Q1153/W/23/3327322 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr R Pratt 
 PROPOSAL: Erection of 4-bed dwelling 

 LOCATION:   Land At Sx 400 795 Higher Edgcumbe Lane Milton Abbot   Officer member delegated 

 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 15-November-2023 

 APPEAL DECISION: 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 
 
 

 Ward Okehampton West 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 1183/23/HHO APP/Q1153/D/23/3330066 

 APPELLANT NAME: Miss Amy Heard 
 PROPOSAL: Householder application for two storey side extension 

 LOCATION: 2 Fowley Barns  Tavistock Road Okehampton Devon  EX20  Officer member delegated 
 4LR 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal decided 

 APPEAL START DATE: 10-October-2023 

 APPEAL DECISION: Upheld 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 07-November-2023 
 
 

 Ward Tavistock North 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 2025/23/HHO APP/Q1153/D/23/3329272 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr D Hassett 

 PROPOSAL: Householder application for 2 storey rear extension 

 LOCATION:               32 Trelawny Road Tavistock   PL19 0EN Officer delegated 

 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 15-November-2023 

 APPEAL DECISION: 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 
 
 

 APPLICATION NUMBER: 4288/22/FUL APP/Q1153/W/23/3327228 

 APPELLANT NAME: Ms J Williams 

 PROPOSAL: Erection of dwelling (amendment to approved scheme - 1622/21/FUL) 

 LOCATION:               22 Glanville Road Tavistock   PL19 0EB  Officer member delegated 

 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 17-November-2023 

 APPEAL DECISION: 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 
 
 

Page 34



 

 

 1 

 

West Devon Planning No. of Undetermined Majors:  12 

 Undetermined Major applications as at 23-Nov-23 
 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 2915/19/FUL Steven Stroud 18-Dec-19 18-Mar-20 31-May-23 
 
 
 Address: Wool Grading Centre, Fore Street, North Tawton,  
 
 Description:  READVERTISEMENT (Revised plans received) Conversion of existing Grade II listed mill buildings (Building A)  

 into 11 open market townhouses and redevelopment for B1 office use. Conversion/re -erection of Building B into 3 open market  
 dwellings 
Comments: Need for re-plan due to EA objection. Sketch revised layout with Heritage for comment. Going through viability review 
 

 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 4113/21/OPA Steven Stroud 16-Nov-21 15-Feb-22 20-May-22 
 
 
 Address: Rondor And Gunns Yard, North Street, Okehampton,  
 
 Description:  Outline application with some matters reserved for the development of 19 No. dwellings with new private access  

 road, parking and external works 
Comments: Written as approval. Dele authority given. Awaiting completion of s106 
 

 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 0107/22/OPA Steven Stroud 13-Jan-22 14-Apr-22 1-Jun-22 
 
 
 Address: Land north of, Green Hill, Lamerton,  
 
 Description:  READVERTISEMENT (additional information and amended description) Outline application for proposed  

 development of 19 dwellings with access and external works with all matters reserved other than the access  
Comments: Further recon carried out following receipt of further detail and completion of viability review. Comments received 
under consideration 
 

 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 4004/21/FUL Steven Stroud 26-Apr-22 26-Jul-22 11-Nov-22 
 
 
 Address: Former Hazeldon Preparatory School, Parkwood Road, Tavistock, PL19 0JS 
 
 Description:  READVERTISEMENT (revised plans and documents) Refurbishment of Hazeldon House to form a single dwelling  

 (including demolition of non listed structures), demolition of all other structures (including former classroom bloc ks) on site, the  
 erection of 10 open market dwellings, reinstatement of original site access, restoration of parkland, associated infrastructu re  
 (including drainage and retaining structures), landscaping, open space, play space, removal of some trees, parking and  
 boundary treatments 
Comments: Revised plans received, out for consultation. Site visit undertaken. Currently under review 

 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 2441/21/FUL Steven Stroud 13-Sep-22 13-Dec-22 31-May-23 
 
 
 Address: The Old Woollen Mill, Fore Street, North Tawton,  
 
 Description:  READVERTISEMENT (revised plans) Hybrid application for full planning for 24 dwellings, office unit (class E), and  

 cafe and business unit (class E) and 13 dwellings as outline permission (Self Build Plots). 
Comments: Need for re-plan due to EA objection. Sketch revised layout with Heritage for comment. Going through viability review 

 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 4440/22/OPA Peter Whitehead 23-Jan-23 24-Apr-23 
 
 
 Address: Land Adjacent To Baldwin Drive, Radford Way, Okehampton,  
 
 Description:  Outline planning permission with some matters reserved (access) for a mix of around 60 1 to 4 bedroom  
 residential dwellings and associated infrastructure 

Comments: Appeal lodged against non-determination 

 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 3198/22/ARM Clare Stewart 27-Jan-23 28-Apr-23 31-May-24 
 
 
 Address: Land Adjacent To Lifton Strawberry Field, Lifton,  
 
 Description:  Application for approval of reserved matters following outline approval 1408/20/0PA for access and adoptable road  

 Layout 

Comments Under consideration. Further details submitted by agent September 2023, rolling EoT.  Page 35

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 1 

 

 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 1116/23/VAR Hayley Easter 15-Jun-23 14-Sep-23 1-Dec-23 
 
 
 Address: Land south of North Tawton Primary Substation, North Tawton, EX20 2DA 
 
 Description:  READVERTISEMENT (updated Applicant's details, revised plans and documents) Application for variation of  

 conditions 2 (approved drawings), 3 (programme of archaeological work), 4 (CEMP), 5 (LEMP), 6(site decommissioning and  
 remediation strategy) and 7 (details of all external materials) of planning consent 2094/21/FUL 
Comment: In consultation period  
 

 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 2435/23/FUL Lucy Hall 16-Aug-23 15-Nov-23 
 
 
 Address: Land At Sx 453 669, Bere Alston,  
 
 Description:  31no new dwellings, associated access road, pedestrian link, landscaping, public open space and drainage 

Comment: In consultation period  

 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 2384/23/FUL Clare Stewart 16-Aug-23 15-Nov-23 1-Dec-23 
 
 
 Address: Land At Sx 455 868, Cross Roads, Lewdown,  
 
 Description:  Construction of 20 dwellings and associated estate road, gardens and open space 

Comment: Under consideration 

 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 2074/23/FUL Clare Stewart 31-Aug-23 30-Nov-23 
 
 
 Address: Land At Sx 608 563 Known As Plot A, Higher Stockley Mead, Okehampton,  
 
 Description:  Construction of building for warehouse use (Class B8) together with parking area 

Comment: Under consideration. 

 

 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 3374/23/ARM Clare Stewart 20-Oct-23 19-Jan-24 
 
 
 Address: Land to the North and West of Lifton Strawberry Fields, Lifton, PL16 0DE 
 
 Description:  Application for approval of reserved matters following outline approval reference 1408/20/OPA for the erection of  

 an industrial building and associated works 
Comment: 

Page 36


	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	Minutes 21 November 2023
	Licensing Sub Committee Minutes 24 October 2023

	5a 1769/23/FUL
	6 Planning Appeals Update
	7 Update on Undetermined Major Applications

